Public Document Pack

Children, Young People and Education Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 1 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Meeting date: National

6 February 2014 Assembly for

Wales

Meeting time: F"
09:45 /

For further information please contact:

Marc Wyn Jones

Committee Clerk

029 2089 8505
CYPCommittee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

Private Pre-meeting - 09.45 - 10:00

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (10.00)

2 Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from Low Income

Households - Evidence session 5 (10.00 - 11.30) (Pages 1 - 14)
Welsh Government
CYPE(4)-03-14 - Paper 1

e Huw Lewis AM, Minister for Education and Skills

e Emma Williams, Head of Support for Learners

e Jo-Anne Daniels, Director of Infrastructure, Curriculum, Qualifications and
Learner Support

3 Papers to note (11.30)

Additional Information from Public Health Wales following the meeting on 4
December 2013 (Pages 15 - 22)
CYPE(4)-03-14 - Paper to note 2

Additional information from the Minister for Health and Social Services
following the meeting on 15 January (Pages 23 - 24)
CYPE(4)-03-14 - Paper to note 3



Agenda Item 2

Children, Young People and Education Committee
Paper 1 — Minister for Education and Skills

Introduction

The Welsh Government is committed to improving the educational outcomes of
children from low income households and has a raft of policies in place designed to
achieve this.

1. The Tackling Poverty Action Plan

The Welsh Government’s Tackling Poverty Action Plan clearly expresses our
ambition to prevent poverty, particularly through investment in giving children the
best possible start in life. From conception through to early adulthood, our aim will be
to reduce inequality at the earliest possible stage and break the link between socio-
economic disadvantage, educational under achievement and the impaired life
chances that very often flows from deprivation.

We know that better off pupils are more than twice as likely to achieve 5 good
GCSEs including English or Welsh and Mathematics as those eligible for free school
meals. We aim to improve the proportion of poorer pupils achieving this target from
just over 23% to 37% by 2017.

There is encouraging evidence that Wales is now closing the gap with England in
each of the headline indicators. Last year more pupils eligible for free school meals
in Wales achieved expected levels at Key Stage 2 than did so in England. More
needs to be done, however, to bring about greater equality in attainment levels for
poorer pupils in Wales.

Programme for Tackling the Impact of Deprivation on Attainment

We are developing a tackling deprivation programme. This will provide a framework
for action that will cross departmental boundaries and draw together a wide range of
activity into a coherent plan. The programme will focus on:

e Early Years

e Family and Community Engagement

¢ Realising Aspirations and Supporting Pupils to achieve their Potential
o Workforce Development

Officials will be seeking contributions from key stakeholders as the programme is
developed and already work closely with colleagues responsible for the Communities
First Programme, Flying Start and Families First.

This work aligns well with work being undertaken by Estyn to support schools in
tackling the impact of poverty on deprivation. Officials are working closely with Estyn
to maximise the impact of work in this area.

2. The role of Welsh Government, education regional consortia, local
authorities, schools and governing bodies

We are assisting schools, local authorities and consortia to develop essential support

structures such as:

1
Page 1



e adopting clear systems for working with outside agencies to support
disadvantaged learners;

e providing training and support to develop the skills of school leaders to
manage partnership working to tackle poverty; and

e using the Pupil Deprivation Grant to target the needs of disadvantaged pupils
specifically, whatever their ability.

National model for regional working: The Robert Hill Review, commissioned in
response to concerns about the performance of local authorities and regional made
recommendations for strengthening consortia regional working. Subsequently, the
Welsh Government and local government have worked together to develop a
national model for regional working, which will, ensure a more focused and
consistent approach across the four consortia regions, and clarify the way local
authorities commission the services of regional education consortia to achieve whole
school improvement. The key elements will be in place by April 2014.

In addition to the consortia’s brokerage and improvement activities, they will
commission and quality-assure delivery of governor support services and training for
governors particularly in respect of understanding and applying data effectively.
Consortia will jointly develop, in consultation with local authorities, governors and
headteachers, a performance data template for headteachers to use to report to
governors on a termly or half termly basis. The report will cover pupil attendance,
pupil exclusions, staff sickness absence, quality of teaching, and progress and
attainment data relative to targets.

Local authorities will retain the statutory accountability for school performance
together with the responsibility for the exercise of statutory powers of intervention
and the organisation of schools.

Looked After Children (LAC): We are committed to improving the educational
outcomes of looked after children, and children in need more generally and have
been engaging with a wide range of stakeholders and other experts to build support
for a new plan for improving the educational outcomes for LAC.

It has become apparent that although a considerable amount of funding is directed
towards supporting LAC, the resources are not always administered in a strategic
and joined-up way resulting in outcomes not being as effective as they could be.

Along with developing the new Looked After Children in Education Plan, we have
strengthened the guidance on the Pupils Deprivation Grant (PDG) and School
Effectiveness Grant (SEG) and will also be continuing the work to map the funding
streams directed towards supporting LAC.

School Governors: In September 2013, the Welsh Government introduced
mandatory training on those areas we believe will make the most difference in better
supporting governors to discharging their functions effectively, these being:
¢ Induction training for new governors to enable them to understand the
parameters of their role;
e Training for all governors in understanding and utilising school data;

2
Page 2



e Training for Chairs in providing the necessary support and challenge to the
head teacher and the senior management team to improve performance.

In addition we developed the mandatory training content and provided training
programmes to local authorities to deliver the mandatory training, which includes the
Welsh Government’s three key priorities of reducing the negative impact of poverty
on pupil achievement and attainment, and improving literacy and numeracy.

The understanding data training will provide governors with a better understanding of
school data including data on pupils in receipt of free school meals and enable them
to utilise the data to challenge performance. The programme includes a section on
examining the criteria used to establish a ‘Family of Schools’ by looking at the Free
Schools Meals eligibility of pupils living in deprived areas.

Schools governing bodies may also work together to tackle poverty in areas of
deprivation by collaborating and setting up joint committees. This is a particularly
useful arrangement where clusters of primary schools are supporting one another to
improve school performance.

Local Authorities ensuring schools include tackling poverty in INSET training:
In June 2013, Estyn reported on schools’ effective use of statutory INSET days.
INSET was found to be most effective in schools where it formed part of an
integrated system of continuing professional development (CPD) and linked with
performance management, self evaluation and priorities at school and national level.
Estyn also drew attention to the importance of linking provision for professional
development with school improvement planning.

The findings indicate that literacy and (to a slightly lesser extent) numeracy have
been prioritised as INSET topics. Reducing the impact of poverty on attainment has
received considerably less attention and the report specifically includes two
recommendations related to this area: that schools focus more on national priorities
in INSET activities, such as tackling the impact of poverty on achievement, and that
INSET is linked closely to the priorities identified for school improvement. The Welsh
Government’s response accepted the context of these recommendations and
officials wrote to local authorities and regional consortia in September last year
asking that they take account of these recommendations in their work with schools.

3. Parental Engagement

The developing Education and Skills Deprivation Programme includes a specific
strand directed at improving parental and community engagement. Supporting the
objectives of this strand will be bespoke parental and community engagement
guidance, together with a Programme for Engagement. There are programmes
across Welsh Government that support the early years, which help prepare young
children from deprived and challenging backgrounds entering the education system.

Flying Start: The Flying Start programme, launched in 2006/2007, is the Welsh
Government’s early years flagship programme which in the long-term aims to reduce
the size of the population with low skills and thereby ultimately tackle income
inequality. It is an area-based programme, geographically targeted at some of the

3
Page 3



most disadvantaged areas of Wales, and is universally available to families with
children aged nought to four in those areas.

Flying Start takes a child-centred approach to improving child outcomes through the
provision of four key service entitlements:
e an enhanced health visiting service, with a target health visitor caseload not
exceeding one health visitor to 110 children (a ratio of 1:110) in each Flying
Start area;
evidence-based parenting support programmes to meet local demand;
e support for early language development (primarily in the form of Language
and Play (LAP) programmes);
e free, high quality, part-time childcare for two to three year olds and younger
where a need is identified. The Flying Start offer is for two and a half hours a
day, five days a week for 39 weeks. In addition, there should be at least 15
sessions of provision for the family during the school holidays.

These entitlements include an overarching focus on early identification of additional
support needs.

Parental support is improved through enhancing access to health visitors, childcare
and programmes for example, that are associated with enabling improvements in
children’s development (whether in cognitive, social, behavioural or communication
skills), facilitating the early identification of need and supporting the integration of
services (through data sharing, for example).

Families First: is a key part of the Welsh Government’s approach to tackling child
poverty: the programme was designed to address the strategic objectives set out in
the 2011 Welsh Child Poverty Strategy. It aims to meet the needs of whole families,
rather than individuals within families, and to co-ordinate the support families receive
from different agencies.

Families First contains five key elements that all authorities must implement in
delivering the programme but they are given flexibility to determine how to implement
each of these elements locally. As a result, the operation of Families First is quite
different across the Welsh authorities.

The five key elements of Families First are:

¢ a Joint Assessment Family Framework (JAFF) used to assess the needs of
the whole family;

e a Team Around the Family (TAF) model that oversees and coordinates the
interventions families receive;

e a coherent set of strategically commissioned, time limited, family-focused
services or projects (in response to a community based needs assessment);

e participation in inter-authority learning sets both nationally and locally; and

e improved support for families with disabled children and young people.

Minority Ethnic Achievement Grant (MEAG) and Gypsy and Traveller
Education Grant (GT grant)

Free school meal entitlement varies considerable between different ethnic minority
groupings with FSM for Gypsy and Traveller and Black African children well over

4
Page 4



three times the national average. The MEAG and GT grants aim to raise the
achievement of these groups of learners and those who are also eligible for free
school meals are also eligible for support from the Pupil Deprivation Grant.

4. Relevant Funding Issues

The SEG and the PDG are the Welsh Government’s principal means of providing
financial support for our three national priorities for schools; improving standards in
literacy, numeracy and reducing the impact of poverty on educational attainment.

The SEG mainly provides support for improving literacy and numeracy but also
includes an element of support for reducing the impact of poverty. The PDG provides
targeted funding to reduce the impact of poverty on educational attainment.

The grant provides support for regional consortia, local authorities and schools to
implement a range of actions set out with the National Literacy and Numeracy
Programmes. This includes ensuring all teachers have the necessary literacy and
numeracy skills to embed these skills across the curriculum and implement the
Literacy and Numeracy Framework.

A central theme within the Literacy and Numeracy Programmes and the SEG is
targeted intervention at school, class and pupil level. Schools are expected to use
consistent and robust use of data to support early identification of learners’ needs to
ensure all learners achieve their potential. Funding is being provided to train
teachers and practitioners to deliver catch-up programmes to pupils who are falling
behind their peers. There is also support to ensure more able and talented learners
are appropriately challenged.

Regional consortia have been asked to identify, develop and deploy outstanding
teachers of literacy and numeracy who can coach, mentor and transfer their
knowledge to their peers. They will support our Professional Learning Communities
and partner other teachers and schools to develop and embed literacy and
numeracy skills and help promote good practice in the classroom.

To reduce the impact of poverty on educational attainment, consortia are required to
demonstrate improvements across 5 key outcomes:
e the gap in attainment between e-FSM pupils and non e-FSM pupils has
decreased over the 3 year period
e the gap in attainment between LAC and all pupils has decreased over the 3
year period
e attendance levels for e-FSM learners supported by the grant improve
e attendance levels for LAC learners supported by the grant improve
e PDG-funded initiatives include parental and community engagement and
partnership working.

For 2013-14, targeted support for looked after children (LAC) has been included

within the PDG rather than the SEG; however activity supporting looked after
children is still considered eligible under the SEG.

5
Page 5



Allocation of grants: SEG is allocated to consortia on the basis of the number of
pupils aged 5-15 in each consortium (60%), the number of pupils aged 5-15 eligible
for Free School Meals (20%), and the number of schools in each consortium (20%).

The PDG is allocated to schools on the basis of the number of pupils aged 5-15
eligible for Free School Meals, based on the Pupil Level Annual School Census
(PLASC) data and the number of looked after children, aged 4-15, based on the
social services Social Service Departments Activity (SSDA) data. Revised guidance
was issued in December 2013, with a requirement for evidence-based approaches
for tackling underachievement of poorer pupils.

The gap is narrowing at each key stage, with some small improvements at Key stage
3 and 4 over the last two years.. Now in the second year of the PDG, it is too early
to make a judgement about its impact, but a three year evaluation by Ipsos Mori and
WISERD is underway, with a requirement to provide feedback and good practice
examples at key points throughout the period of the evaluation to support further
improvements.

The four regional consortia are charged with supporting and challenging schools on
how they support e-FSM pupils to improve the attainment. Welsh Government is
currently undertaking regional stocktakes with each of the consortia to provide
challenge on the impact of their work with schools on the use of the PDG. Officials
have also been working with Estyn to strengthen the inspection process in terms of
supporting poorer pupils’ achievement and the use of resources, including the PDG
for this purpose.

5. Costs associated with education

The Welsh Government has a number of programmes and policies in place designed
to provide practical help to those children from low income households so that they
are not disadvantaged with regard to the costs associated with education.

School Uniform Grant: In 2005 the Welsh Government introduced an all Wales
school uniform grant scheme The School Uniform Grant is available to pupils
entering year 7 of maintained schools in Wales who are eligible for free school
meals, and to pupils in special schools, special needs resource bases and pupil
referral units who are aged 11 at the start of the school year and who are eligible for
free school meals.

In 2013-14, eligible pupils will receive a payment of £105, normally in the form of
cheque, vouchers, BACs transfer, or in certain cases, uniform items are provided.

Remission of charges relating to residential trips

In schools other than independent schools, the education provided wholly or mainly
during school hours is free. This means that headteachers may not impose a charge
on parents for any visit that occurs during school hours or any transport that is
associated with them.

The school, however, may still invite parents to make voluntary contributions to the
cost of activities, for example swimming lessons, and/or transport costs even if the

6
Page 6



activity is provided as part of the national curriculum. These requests must make
clear that there is no legal obligation to make a voluntary contribution, and that those
pupils will not be treated differently from those whose parents have made a
contribution. If there are not enough voluntary contributions to make the activity
possible and no way to make up the shortfall, the activity must be cancelled. Where
activity is offered outside of the school day and is not part of the national curriculum,
schools may levy a charge.

A school may not charge parents for anything unless the governing body has
adopted a charging policy, detailing circumstances in which the school will charge
parents and when it may ask for voluntary contributions. The policy should also
explain any circumstances in which the school will wholly, or partially, waive a
charge. The governing body should ensure that parents are aware of the charging

policy.

Parents and carers who are in receipt of the benefits that form the eligibility criteria
for Free School Meals are exempt from paying the cost of board and lodging

The exemption of charges for board and lodgings on residential trips is managed by
the school and the cost is borne by the school.

Welsh Government has placed an additional provision in the Education (Remission
of Charges Relating to Residential Trips)(Wales)(Amendment) Regulations 2013, to
allow pupils whose parents are in receipt of Universal Credit to claim free board and
lodgings on a school residential trip.

6. Issues relevant to Free School Meals

FSM Entitlement - Where a parent, carer or the young person themselves can
prove they are in receipt of the following benefits they are eligible for Free School
Meals (FSM):
a. Income Support.
b. Income Based Jobseeker's Allowance.
c. Any other benefit or allowance, or entitled to any tax credit under the Tax
Credits Act 2002 or element of such a tax credit, as may be prescribed by
regulations from time to time. Currently the following are prescribed:
e support under Part 6 of the Immigration and Asylum Act 1999;
e Child Tax Credit, providing Working Tax Credit is not also received and
the family’s income (as assessed by Her Majesty’s Revenue and
Customs) does not exceed £16,190 i.e. children who are eligible to
receive free school meals;
¢ Income Related Employment and Support Allowance.
e Universal Credit
d. Guarantee element of the State Pension Credit.

Take-Up Rates: On PLASC census day, in January 2013, 62,583 children claimed a
Free School Meal, being 75%o0f those entitled to FSM. Take-up rates for Free
School Meals (FSM) in Wales have reduced slightly over the last ten years and are
generally slightly lower in secondary schools than in primary.

7
Page 7



Perceived Stigma of Claiming Free School Meals: A survey by the Welsh Local
Government Association (WLGA), in 2011, suggests that the main concern for FSM-
entitled pupils was queues rather than the stigma per se of FSM entitlement. Other
key concerns were the type of food provided; cost (assumed to be the local authority
‘allowance’ for their meals); and, for FSM pupils not taking up their entitlement, what
their friends did. It also suggested that cashless systems don’t always result in
higher levels of uptake for FSM

Eligibility Criteria for Free School Meals in view of the move to Universal
Credit: The UK Government’s Welfare Reform agenda impacts on the eligibility
criteria for FSM as Universal Credit (UC) will replace existing support payments.
Welsh Government officials are continuing to work on the development of delivery
options for Welsh Government passported benefits, including FSM, as part of

the introduction of UC in Wales. The intention longer term is to maintain a cost
neutral option with roughly the same number of families eligible for FSM as is
currently the case. Further changes will therefore be required to the eligibility criteria.

The use of Free School Meals as a proxy indicator for income deprivation

As FSM are used as an indicator of deprivation, so changes to the eligibility criteria
will have an effect on certain grant streams and on key performance and
accountability indicators such as school banding, school data packs, My Local
School, school inspections by Estyn, and a number of targets in the Tackling Poverty
Action Plan and Programme for Government.

Other Holistic Considerations re: FSM; Free Breakfast in Primary Schools
(FBIPS) Initiative: As of 2013, under section 88 of the School Standards and
Organisations act, local authorities now have a statutory Duty to provide free
breakfast in maintained primary schools in Wales, if requested. Welsh Government
provides funding, through the Revenue Support Grant, to all local authorities in
Wales for the FBIPS Initiative. It is currently the only level of free universal school
food provision in Wales, and uptake on a school level was 78.87% (PLASC 2013).
In 2013-14, £14. 7mwas made available for free breakfasts.

7. Child Poverty: Eradication through Education

The Department for Education and Skills has acted on those recommendations in
the Committee’s Report “Child Poverty: Eradication through Education” that fall
under its responsibility.

8
Page 8



The National Assembly for Wales’s Children and Young People Committee:
Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from Low Income Households

Additional information requested for Written Evidence Paper to
C&YP Committee

Welsh Government Strategy:

The effectiveness of the Sutton Trust Toolkit and its uptake in Wales.

The Sutton Trust Toolkit, developed by the University of Durham in conjunction with
the Education Endowment Foundation (EEF), is a well-established source of
information. All EEF projects are rigorously evaluated by independent experts in
educational research. The extent of the Toolkit's use amongst education
practitioners in English speaking countries across the world as well as the UK and
the fact that the interventions it includes are constantly being evaluated ensures that
they are effective.

The initial scoping phase of an evaluation of the Pupil Deprivation Grant,
commissioned by Welsh Government indicates that reference to the Toolkit in Wales
appears low, although the sample size was too small to draw firm conclusions.
Furthermore, the interviewees in the scoping stage may not have been sufficiently
close to management of the grant to accurately reflect how it is used. This will be
addressed as the evaluation progresses.

New guidance on the use of the PDG has since been published which makes it
absolutely clear that schools are expected to be making use of evidence-based
approaches such as those described in the EEF Sutton Trust toolkit. There are
however, other sources of information about what works and these have been made
available via the Learning Wales website under the Poverty Improvement Area.

The Welsh Government will be meeting with regional consortia at the beginning of
February to seek assurance that the PDG is being used to deliver evidence-based
solutions.

Other evidence based approaches are recommended to practitioners in Wales which
include Save the Children Cymru’s Families and Schools Together (FAST)
programme, and the Achievement for All 3As programme.

The Minister’s response to the first report of the Social Mobility and Child
Poverty Commission’s findings.

On 2 September 2013, Vaughan Gething AM, Deputy Minister for Tackling Poverty,
responded to the Commission, describing progress reported by Welsh Government
Ministers towards achieving the objectives set out in the Child Poverty

Strategy.

9
Page 9



The information provided to the Commission relating to Education is set out below in
headline terms:

The performance of both free school meal (FSM) and non-FSM pupils has improved
every year since 2006, except at key stage 4.

The gap in performance at key stage 4 increased every year between 2006 and
2010, but has fallen over the last two years.

The latest data for 2013 (published on 22 January 2014), shows a continuation of
this trend with 25.8% of pupils e-FSM achieving the level 2 threshold in 2013,
compared with 23.4 in 2012.

Attainment across the board has risen but e-FSM has risen more than n-FSM at
each key stage including Foundation Phase.

Through the School Effectiveness (SEG) and Pupil Deprivation Grants (PDG) the
Welsh Government is taking action to improve standards in literacy numeracy and to
address the impact of poverty on educational attainment. The Budget Settlement for
2014/15:

. maintains the commitment to increase spending on schools over the next
two years;

. provides targeted support to reduce inequalities in attainment by extending
the Pupil Deprivation Grant to 2015-16; and,

. provides £35m extra investment in 2014-15 to increase the PDG from

£450 per pupil to £918.

Welsh Government commissioned over 1700 places for young people to take part in
the Pathways to Apprenticeship programme in 2012/13. This is partly financed
through the European Social Fund.

In October 2012, the former Minister for Education and Skills launched a new
national implementation plan for the education of pupils aged 3 to 16 in Wales called
‘Improving schools’. The plan sets out the three national priorities for education,
which are raising attainment in literacy and numeracy and reducing the impact of
poverty on educational attainment.

The new Higher Education Policy Statement, published in June 2013, re-confirms
the Welsh Government’s commitment to opening up higher education to all those
with the potential to benefit from it regardless of age, gender, mode and level of
study, country of origin and background.

On 17 July 2013 the Minister for Education and Skills, the Minister for Communities
and Tackling Poverty and the Deputy Minister for Tackling Poverty launched Building
a Brighter Future: Early Years and Childcare Plan. The Plan sets out the direction of
travel for the next 10 years with actions and timescales for delivery. It brings
coherence across different policies and programmes impacting on and influencing
the early years.

10

Page 10



Targets/Monitoring

Any issues the Minister wishes to highlight to the Committee in respect of
Progress towards the two 2017 targets in Building Resilient Communities:
Taking Forward the Tackling Poverty Action Plan in respect of narrowing the
attainment gap.

The recent introduction of the Foundation Phase means that indicators have only
been in place for 2 years. In 2012 the percentage of pupils eligible for free school
meals who achieved the Foundation Phase Indicator was 66.2%, compared with
84.5% for non-FSM pupils. In 2013 this had risen to 69.2% and 86.9% respectively.
The rate of attainment has, therefore, risen across the board at Foundation Phase,
but the difference between e-FSM and n-FSM has reduced by 0.6 percentage points.
While it is not possible to draw conclusions from only 2 years of data, if this rate of
improvement continues the gap would have narrowed by 3 percentage points by
2017. In other words, the Foundation Phase target will have been exceeded by 1.2
percentage points.

The headline measure of performance of 15 year olds is the Level 2 Threshold
inclusive of a GCSE at grade C or above in English or Welsh first language and
mathematics (L2 inc). The proportion of e-FSM learners who achieved this threshold
in 2012 was 23.4% compared with 56.6% of n-FSM learners. Progress against this
measure has been improving year on year and the rate of improvement has been
increasing.

Improvement in e-FSM performance improved by:

0.6 of a percentage point between 2009 and 2010;
1.3 of a percentage point between 2010 and 2011,
1.4 of a percentage point between 2011 and 2012; and
2.4 of a percentage point between 2012 and 2013

In the past 3 years the rate of improvement for e-FSM learners has been greater
than for n-FSM learners.

Given this accelerating rate of improvement, supported by the impact of the PDG,
strengthened guidance, resource materials and the range of other measures we
have implemented or are developing means that we are on track to meet the target
for Key Stage 4.

The role of Community Focussed Schools in closing the Attainment Gap

In 2011 it was agreed that a number of grant funding streams be brought together to
create a single grant, the School Effectiveness Grant (SEG). The SEG replaced and
consolidated funding previously provided through a number of smaller grant
schemes, including the Community Focused Schools grant. The initial aim of SEG
was to improve school effectiveness and the guidance set out the importance of
Community Focused Schooling as part of an agenda to raise standards and meet

11
Page 11



the national priorities including the breaking the link between attainment and child
poverty.

A key aim for the SEG is to promote rigorously the principle of all schools being
community-focused, whilst targeting additional support to enable schools in areas of
greater deprivation to realise the ideal more quickly and more intensively.

Specific additional funding to support the educational attainment of pupils from
deprived backgrounds was introduced in 2012 via the Pupil Deprivation grant. This
has been match funded with £3 million of Community First funding to further
encourage schools to work with their local communities in deprived areas. Officials
responsible for managing the grants and policy around them worked closely together
to draft the funding criteria to ensure effective partnership working between schools
and their communities.

During 2014, our Deprivation Programme, currently being developed for publication
later in the spring, will place greater emphasis on strategies to engage harder to
reach parents from deprived communities in their children’s learning. The
Programme will include a specific strand directed at improving parental and
community engagement. Such support will include the development of bespoke
parental and community engagement guidance together with a proactive Programme
for Engagement.

The future role of Communities First ‘learning communities’ in closing the
attainment gap

Following consultation in 2011, the Communities First (CF) was refocused as a
Community Focussed Tackling Poverty Programme. It aims to narrow the
education/skills, economic and health gaps between the most deprived and more
affluent areas by:

e supporting individuals, families and groups of people who have the poorest
education/skills, economic and health outcomes;

e supporting those in places where deprivation is most concentrated,

¢ increasing the life skills, self esteem and self reliance of individuals, including
their financial capability;

e supporting and strengthening the local activity which does most to tackle
poverty and deprivation.

There are now 52 CF Clusters in Wales, accounting for around 24% of the
population.

In November 2013, The Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty announced
the extension of the Programme for the life of the current Government subject to an
evaluation and future budgetary constraints.

12
Page 12



Learning Communities

This outcome is strongly supported in the Delivery Plans set out by each Cluster.
Projects supporting this outcome include:

homework clubs

toddler groups focussing on making children ‘school ready’

literacy and numeracy classes more generally but also for children and parents
to study together

basic skills improvement schemes, including schemes for vulnerable young
people, children from minority or hard to reach groups

schemes aimed at improved attainment levels at key stages 2, 3 and 4

The CF Programme supports over 100 posts that are focussed on learning and
education including family learning initiatives.

Communities First Pupil Deprivation Grant Match Fund

The CF Pupil Deprivation Grant Match Fund (PDG) offers CF Clusters match funding
against PDG allocated to their local schools.

The grant aims to increase the number of schools working with Clusters and build on
the existing good working relations within CF Clusters where this work already
happens. The Minister for Education and Skills

13

Page 13



Agenda Iltem 3a

Q GIG lechyd Cyhoeddus Additional Information to
dL?b Tt Children and Young Peoples
INFAS | froic Heatt Committee Inquiry on

Childhood Obesity
Children, Young People and Education Committee

Paper to note 2

1. Professional opinion of standards which are the same for 4 year old
children and 11 year old children.

The school meal standards apply to food and nutrients and are not
individual, they are for the provision of food . Food based standards
define the types of food which have limited nutritional value and those
which consumption should be increased to contribute to a healthy diet.

Nutrient-based standards apply to an average school lunch over five
consecutive school days, and relate to overall provision rather than
individual consumption. Many schools (especially secondary schools)
provide a choice of food and drink at lunchtime, so each pupil consumes a
different balance of nutrients. Also, some pupils need to eat more than
others depending on age, body size, metabolism and physical activity.
Therefore, it is an average school lunch over 5 school days rather than
every lunch consumed that must meet the nutrient standards.

An average school lunch must provide:
e The specified amount of energy (with 5% tolerance)
e no more than the maximum amount for fat, saturated fat, Non-milk
extrinsic (NME) sugars and sodium
e at least the minimum amount for carbohydrate, protein, fibre,
vitamin A, vitamin C, folate, calcium, iron and zinc

In terms of the different requirements of a 4 year old and 11 year old ,
the portion size needs to reflect their different energy and protein
requirements.

There are no current guidelines on differences between age groups in
primary schools so portion sizes are the same for 4 and 11 year olds,
however this should be interpreted at local level with support to
acknowledge the different age groups. The guidance could contain some
visual interpretation of portion sizes. For example, in practice the
portions are governed to some extent by demand i.e. if there is food left
over older pupil will have more and younger pupils will choose less. What
also needs to be taken into account is waste as children can be served a
balanced meal that meet their requirements in the correct portions but it
needs to consumed for the benefit.

Page 14



Micro nutrient requirement will be covered for all age groups provided a
balanced choice is taken. The nutritional standards have not followed the
principle of greatest need to avoid diets with more energy, fat and salt
than recommended for school age children, but salt intake could be a
concern for the youngest age group if standardisation of policies on salt
in cooking are not adhered to.

2. What work is being done to spread good practice across Wales, for
example from authorities where uptake rates have remained good to
those where there has been a drop off.

This has been led by Welsh Local Government Association — there is a
nutrition analysis liaison officer who works with Local authorities and
supports the development of recipes and nutritional analysis. There is
documentation and sharing of recipes on the website. There should be
good local partnership working between LA catering, education and health
(public health and dietetics) and this is the case in most areas of Wales.

The level of professional support to implement the standards varies
across Wales, some areas have utilised the central budget to have
dietetic support , but there is a risk going forward that this may be lost
with the the funding no longer ring fenced. Most areas have multiagency
implementation groups.

3. Delivery of the MEND Programme in Wales
The Committee asked for information on where the MEND programme had

been delivered in Wales. The table below provides information for the
period from April 2008 until March 2013.

APRIL 2012 — MARCH 2013 SEP 2011 - MARCH APRIL 2008- JULY 2011
2012
No of 33 (MEND 7-13) 29 111 over 33 months
programmes | 2 (MEND 5 -7)
Areas Abertawe Bro Morgannwy UHB | Abertawe Bro All Health Board areas,
Area: Morgannwy UHB Area | but not all Local
Neath Port Talbot LA Swansea Authorities were
Swansea LA Neath Port Talbot covered during this
Bridgend Powys period
Aneurin Bevan HB Cardiff and Vale
covering 5 LA’s Health Board
Cardiff and Vale Health Board Cwm Taf
Powys Rhondda Cynon Taff LA
Cwm Taf HB - Hywel Dda HB
Rhondda Cynon Taff LA Carmarthen
Hywel Dda HB Betsi Cadwaladr UHB
Carmarthenshire LA Wrexham
Betsi Cadwaladr UHB Conwy
Wrexham LA Anglesey

Page 15




Conwy LA

ittt

WHIASU

Wales Health Impact
Assessment Support Unit
Uned Gymorth Asesu
Effaith ar lechyd Cymru

Health Impact Assessment (HIA) and Local Development Planning

Planning Departments and planning decisions can have a huge impact on health and wellbeing and
can have an enormous influence on the wider determinants of health. They can shape the
environment we live in, make decisions about the siting and development of housing, green space,
retail, leisure and employment facilities and how we access and use these. Decisions can facilitate
physical activity or access to fresh, quality food or limit choices to do so ie supermarkets in out of
town retail parks that we drive to versus easy to walk or cycle to local shops; or allocating green
space for development or recreation. As obesity and associated ill health increases in Wales there is
a need to make these connections more explicit.

In preparation for a new National Assembly for Wales, Better Health, Better Wales (Welsh
Office, 1998) described the need to tackle the social and economic determinants of health
and aimed to develop HIA in Wales as a means to support health promotion and prevention
initiatives. At a strategic level, the publication of ‘Making the Connections’ (Welsh
Assembly Government, 2004) aimed to support the integration of health across all sectors
and a consideration of ‘Health in all Policies’ (WHO, 1999). A focus on integrating ‘Health
in All Policies’ has led to HIA being seen as a key element in raising awareness of health
and wellbeing in Wales in other sectors and supporting the health promotion and
prevention agendas.

HIA as practiced in Wales (WHIASU, 2012) considers not just the biophysical and environmental
health impacts which can be derived from planning proposals and plans (which are routinely
assessed as part of Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs)) but assesses the impact on the wider
determinants of health in a systematic yet flexible way. These determinants such as the physical and
built environment, community, transport, housing, employment and access to services all interact to
influence our health and mental wellbeing to a greater or lesser extent in conjunction with the
lifestyle choices that we make and our genetic makeup. HIA also considers issues of equity and
inequalities by looking at any vulnerable groups who may be affected by a plan or proposal and the
distribution of effects on them.

Conducting an HIA within planning processes, regeneration and housing sectors can confer
considerable benefits and contribute to healthy public policy and urban and rural planning. Not only
will HIA assess the potential positive and negative impacts but it will highlight any potential
improvements which could be made to maximize health and wellbeing and identify and mitigate for
any detrimental impacts or unintended consequences. HIA can make more explicit the links between
land use and associated planning decisions, the way that we live and the key health and wellbeing
issues today — including obesity, lack of physical activity and the associated risk factors and illnesses.

It directly involves the local key organizational and community stakeholders and those who have

local knowledge and understanding of how the project, plan or proposal will have a direct and
indirect impact on local populations. A HIA can give context to a decision or plan. This includes

Page 16



how a community interacts with its physical and built environment and can facilitate physical health
promotion and health improvement by encouraging cycle paths, pedestrian friendly towns, more
active travel, open and green space allocation for recreation and sport in LDPs and housing
developments and access to the growth and purchase of fresh and affordable food.

WHIASU is currently working with a number of local authorities on Local Development Plans,
regeneration initiatives and housing projects and plans. Within each of these HIAs, there have been
discussions around creating safe, physical activity friendly environments as encouraged by ‘Creating
an Active Wales’ (WAG, 2009) and its explicit linkage of planning to health and wellbeing.

Studies have shown that open spaces and well planned integrated people friendly urban
centres can contribute to promoting physical activity and well being and can help to
reduce being overweight and obesity by encouraging walking and cycling and can improve
mental wellbeing for all age ranges. Well planned and integrated transport links can aid
physical activity. It is essential in childhood for social development and in older people for
increasing social interaction and mental wellbeing. At a community level, it has also been
shown that green space and a well planned urban environment in a neighbourhood can
similarly promote and increase social interaction and reduce social isolation. Green
spaces in an urban area offer the opportunity for the community to find calmness, be
sociable, take exercise and escape to the pressure of urban life. (Netherland Institute for
Health Services Research Utrecht, 2006; Institute of Occupational Medicine, 2008;
Institute of Rural Health and Countryside Council for Wales, 2008; Faculty of Public Health
and Natural England, 2010). The importance of the link between the built and natural
environment and being physically active is also recognised within the NICE public health
guidance 8 - ‘Promoting and creating built or natural environments that encourage and
support physical activity’ (NICE, 2008).

Despite this and until recently, not all local authorities have reflected the importance of health in
planning decisions re green spaces, recreational areas or person centred built environments but this
is now changing as obesity and associated ill health increases. Indeed in Wales, the use of HIA as a
process to consider health and wellbeing has been included the new 2013 Regeneration Framework
‘Vibrant and Viable Places’ (WG, 2012) and although there is no statutory requirement for HIA in
Wales (or the UK) HIA is included as a requirement or advocated as best practice in more and more
planning documents. ‘Chapter 2: Development Plans’ (Page 21) of Planning Policy Wales (WG, 2012)
states that ‘the several impacts of plans upon health and its determinants should be considered’. In
addition Planning Policy Wales produced a Technical Advice Note 16 in January 2009, Sport,
Recreation and Open Space (WG, 2009) which advises on the role of the planning system in making
provision for sport and recreational facilities and informal open places in both the urban and rural
environment.

At a local level, many HIAs have been completed in conjunction with regeneration, LDPs, planning
and housing schemes. These are published on the WHIASU website — www.whiasu.wales.nhs.uk .
Recent HIA case studies are described below.

HIA Case Studies

Flintshire Local Development Plan (2013 - 2017)

This will be a comprehensive, integrated HIA and take place throughout the lifetime of the
preparation of the LDP. It will be led by a multi-disciplinary, multi-sector Steering Group on behalf of
Flintshire County Council, who will take ownership of the HIA. The HIA will be supported by the
Wales HIA Support Unit and Public Health Wales (PHW) Regional Public Health Team.

Page 17



A HIA Scoping Report has been written to set out the terms of the HIA and includes an agreed plan
for it and how the process can be used to consider health, wellbeing and inequalities and integrate
them with planning policy throughout the LDP development. It will consist of a number of HIA
participatory workshops at all the defined, key stages of the Plan (including assessment of the
Candidate Sites) and will be fed into the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and Sustainability
Appraisal (SA). The HIA will ensure the involvement of key health stakeholders, elected members,
private citizens and specific communities.

HIA has been embraced by the LA Planning Policy Department and as part of this commitment a
section on HIA has been included within the LDP Delivery Agreement and presented to WG.

The HIA will focus on the following:

Housing

Economic Development

Employment (all of which are the primary themes of the SEA and SA)

Physical health and mental wellbeing (including facilitating physical activity and active travel
as part of developments and green space and promoting accessible, cheap and fresh food
where possible)

Other important elements to be considered within the context of Flintshire are:

e Inequalities and the impacts on vulnerable groups ie travellers
e Geographical Areas and communities of Interest ie Communities First areas

Evidence will be both quantitative and qualitative.

An Evidence Document is currently being finalised and this contains all the essential references to
key Public Health documents, policies, community health profiles and evidence with regards to
health and planning - for example ‘Creating an Active Wales’, TAN 16 and the Active Travel (Wales)
Bill (WG, 2013). This Evidence Document will be updated and help to shape and substantiate any
health and wellbeing input or changes made to the LDP as it progresses. This work is currently
ongoing but it has already proved highly beneficial — by making Planning Officers more aware of
health and health issues and making connections to how what they are planning can have a
significant direct and indirect impact on the populations’ health and wellbeing. This includes the
siting of fast food and takeaway outlets (particularly near schools), out of town retail shopping
centres — where people have to drive or walk minimally and the importance of the maintenance of
green or other recreational space.

Cardiff Local Development Plan (At final stage)

This HIA work (Cardiff County Council, 2012; 2013) has now almost concluded but the rapid HIAs
have demonstrated the health connections and linkages to planning policy and planners very clearly
and explicitly.

Amendments have been made to the LDP documents throughout the final 2 stages and specific
references have been included such as adding in supporting text to Policy C7 Health and linking this
to Policy R7 Food and Drink Uses (access to healthy affordable food/care with alcohol accessibility)
which make a clear recognition between the links to health from such uses; cross references from

Page 18



policy C6 Provision of Children’s Play to Policy T1 Walking and Cycling; the agreement to prepare a
separate Open Space SPG to supplement LDP policies for recreation and physical activity ; and
explicit referencing of Healthy Urban Planning in Policy KP14 Healthy Living.

Rhyl ‘Going Forward’ Regeneration Delivery Plan, Denbighshire (2012)

The HIA was based on a short evidence review and a participatory stakeholder workshop.

It aimed to identify and assess potential health and community impacts and highlight future projects
contained within the Delivery Plan to be subject to a HIA. The workshop included a number of ‘non
health’ participants including planning, housing and regeneration leads from the local authority,
elected members, community and voluntary organisation representatives plus public health
practitioners.

A number of practical recommendations were made including;

e continuing to encourage physical activity with the extension of cycle paths;

e filling in the flood defences in order to minimise accidents and injuries;

e recommending to the Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) group that they liaise with
the architects who will be designing new buildings/areas in Rhyl in order to take a creative
approach to planning and creating a balanced community and healthier built environment ;

e attempting to enhance social capital and physical activity through community development
projects such as ‘The Cut’ (Community green space);

e trying to attract more families to live in areas with a high number of current HMO’s by
providing high quality family orientated housing and attractive green spaces.

Many of these have been followed. As part of this HIA, the West Rhyl Housing Improvement
Project was highlighted as a significant project which would need to have a separate HIA completed
as part of its development and execution. This work is currently taking place - with the first phase
focussing primarily on the creation of a community green space at the centre of the Housing Project.

The HIAs have demonstrated how health is affected by all policies and plans and certainly those that
have attended or have been part of the HIAs have reflected that it is a very beneficial and positive
process which had made them understand health much more broadly, made connections to their
work much more explicit and rethink some plans and decisions.

Liz Green

Principal HIA Development Officer, WHIASU
January 2014

References

Cardiff County Council (2012). Health Impact Assessment of the Local Development Plan Preferred
Strategy.

Cardiff County Council (2013). Health Impact Assessment of the Deposit Local Development Plan

Faculty of Public Health and Natural England (2010). Great Outdoors: How our natural health service
uses green space to improve wellbeing.

Institute of Occupational Medicine and Greenspace Scotland (2008). Health Impact assessment of
green space: A Guide.

Page 19



Institute of Rural Health and Countryside Council for Wales (2008). Natural Heritage: a pathway to
health.

National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) (2008). Public health guidance 8 - Promoting and
creating built or natural environments that encourage and support physical activity

Netherland Institute for Health Services Research Utrecht, Wageningen (2006). Green
Space, urbanity and health: how strong is the relation? Journal of Epidemiology and
Community health.

Wales Health Impact Assessment Support Unit (WHIASU) (2012). Health Impact Assessment; A
Practical Guide

Welsh Office (1998) Better Health, Better Wales. Cardiff: Welsh Office
Welsh Assembly Government (2004). Making the Connections: Delivering better services for Wales.
Welsh Assembly Government. (2006) Draft Ministerial Interim Planning Policy Statement 02

Welsh Assembly Government (2007). One Wales - A progressive agenda for the government of
Wales.

Welsh Assembly Government (2008). Welsh Transport Appraisal Guidance (WelTAG)
http://cymru.gov.uk/topics/transport/publications/weltag/;isessionid=fnjGMmfTYXVKrZJN5vydzHDt
pILXQS3txpm6LhhK8Tx9tzxZyyTx!-971712554?lang=en (accessed July 20th 2013)

Welsh Assembly Government. (2002) Technical Advice Note 21
http://wales.gov.uk/splash;jsessionid=yXtwTgTRdxvvhSzi9pITrnbFr1hSMh0V23vbMKbWQhTJJnmCO
CmB!-112334022870rig=/topics/planning/policy/tans/tan21/ (accessed July 20th 2013)

Welsh Assembly Government. (2009) Minerals Technical Advice Note 2

Welsh Assembly Government (2009) Creating an Active Wales
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/phhs/publications/activewales/100121activewalesen.pdf

Welsh Government (2009) Planning Policy Wales Technical Advice Note (TAN) 16 Sport Recreation
and Open Space

Welsh Government (2012). ‘Chapter 2: Development Plans’ (Page 21) of Planning Policy Wales
(Edition 5, November 2012) http://wales.gov.uk/topics/planning/policy/ppw/?lang=en (Accessed
6/11/2013).

Welsh Government (2013). Active Travel (Wales) Bill
Welsh Government (2013) ‘Vibrant and Viable Places: New Welsh Regeneration Framework’
World Health Organisation (1999). Health 21: The health for all policy framework for the

WHO European Region. European Health for All Series No.6. Copenhagen: World Health
Organisation

Page 20



Page 21



Children, Young People and Education Committee

Faper v mote 3 Agenda Item 3b

Mark Drakeford AC / AM ’X / (‘f?T
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol J[b Jl}

Minister for Health and Social Services

Llywodraeth Cymru

Welsh Government
Ein cyf/Our ref: SF/MD/4155/13

Ann Jones AM

Chair

Children, Young People and Education Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA 28 January 2014

Do, Pon,

Further to my appearance before the Children, Young People and Education Committee on
15 January regarding childhood obesity, | am writing to provide a written response to two
questions which were not asked due to time constraints. My responses to these are
provided below.

How best practices of local authorities, for example prohibiting future planning
applications for hot food takeaways within a 400m radius of schools or colleges, are
being shared more widely.

Wrexham County Borough Council is seeking to prohibit new hot food takeaway
applications within 400 metres of schools and colleges, via the use of Supplementary
Planning Guidance. This policy has been put into place in a few areas in England but
Wrexham is the first local authority to implement it in Wales.

Research indicates that children attending schools near fast food outlets are more likely to
be obese than those whose schools are more inaccessible to such outlets. In Wrexham
County Borough nearly 60% of schools are located near to hot food takeaway outlets.
Having additional outlets close to schools could negate efforts by the Council and its
partners in supporting the Healthy Schools and Appetite for Life Programmes to ensure that
young people have access to healthy options. Whilst pupils in primary education are not
allowed out of school premises during the school day, research indicates that the most
popular time for purchasing food from shops is after school.

Wrexham has published a Local Planning Guidance Note as part of a broader Healthy
Eating and Being More Active Strategy to tackle obesity in the area. The note focuses on
hot food takeaways with regard to appropriate location and concentration, highway safety,
general amenity and community health issues. The guidance note advises that food outlets
in close proximity to, and surrounding schools, can provide an added incentive and
temptation to children to over-consume fast food.

Bae Caerdydd - Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Ltinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Mark.Drakeford @wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchi? 1Qy®)2 2 Printed on 100% recycled paper



The approach adopted in Wrexham has been shared via presentations to the Wales
National Obesity Forum Conference and as a poster at the most recent National Public
Health conference. It has also been shared in an article published by the physical activity
and nutrition network, and in television documentaries and local media. It has also been
shared by the WLGA with the Directors of Public Protection network in Wales.

Other local authorities in Wales have expressed interest in pursuing this policy and
Denbighshire County Council is actively looking at revising its current Planning
Supplementary Guidance to implement this approach.

Views on whether the use of Health Impact Assessments should be included within the
Public Health Bill.

Health Impact Assessment (HIA) is a widely available method which provides a means of
assessing both the health hazards and benefits of a wide range of policy proposals. It has
been used by a range of organisations, including Welsh Government, local authorities,
voluntary sector organisations, the NHS and community organisations. | fully expect HIA to
be used when appropriate to do so.

We started a general discussion about the potential role of legislation in contributing to
public health objectives through a Green Paper consultation exercise, which concluded in
early 2013. Responses on the specific issue of HIA were mixed. Whilst there was a high
level of support for the concept of using HIA as a method for ensuring health interests are
considered as part of policy making, a number of respondents expressed reservations
regarding a legislative requirement to undertake HIA. These included the need to avoid any
unnecessary bureaucracy or any approach thought to be disproportionate.

There was, however, widespread support for the adoption of a ‘Health in All Policies’
approach to policy development. In light of this, we are working across the Welsh
Government to ensure that legislation such as the Future Generations Bill makes a positive
contribution to this agenda, as such an approach will recognise that improving health will
require collective effort across the devolved public service.

in addition, we have also been exploring a number of potential legislative proposals to

support discrete public health priority areas. | plan to provide further information about this
work in a Public Health White Paper, which | aim to publish shortly.

&"JJC I v

(M ove

Mark Drakeford AC / AM
Y Gweinidog lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services

Page 23



	Agenda
	2 Inquiry into Educational Outcomes for Children from Low Income Households - Evidence session 5
	Paper 1 - Minister for Education and Skills

	3a Additional Information from Public Health Wales following the meeting on 4 December 2013
	3b Additional information from the Minister for Health and Social Services following the meeting on 15 January

